Minutes of the Meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held on 21 July 2016

PRESENT -

Councillor Humphrey Reynolds (Chairman); Councillor Mike Teasdale (Vice-Chairman); Councillors Michael Arthur, John Beckett, Neil Dallen, Jan Mason, Tina Mountain, Peter O'Donovan, Martin Olney, David Reeve, Vince Romagnuolo, Clive Smitheram and David Wood

Officers present: Adele Castle (Planning Development Manager), Alanna Coombes (Town Centres Manager - Place Development), Mark Rouson (Corporate Communications Officer), Danny Surowiak (Principal Solicitor) and Sandra Dessent (Democratic Services Officer)

17 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made by Councillors in items on this Agenda. However in the interests of openness and transparency, any connections with the applications that were discussed are recorded under the relevant item.

18 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the previous Meeting of the Planning Committee held on 16 June 2016 were agreed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

19 PLANNING APPLICATION 15/01851/FUL - THE EBBISHAM CENTRE, 7 DERBY SQUARE, HIGH STREET, EPSOM, KT19 8AG

Description

Erection of a canopy structure, feature seating and landscaping in Derby Square together with High Street entrance feature.

Decision

The application is **PERMITTED** subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

<u>Reason</u>: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans BUR5855_101.1, BUR5855_101.2, BUR5855_101.3 received on/dated 30.06.2016.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans to comply with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007).

(3) No development shall take place until details of existing and proposed finished site levels, of the frame and letters to be erected, and finished external levels have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall thereafter be constructed in accordance with the approved details.

<u>Reason</u>: In order to safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(4) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples of the external surfaces, metal frame, 'jumberella', planters and benches to be used for the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

<u>Reason</u>: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(5) All planting, seeding or turfing approved shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of the development or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, die or become seriously damaged or diseased in the opinion of the local planning authority, shall be replaced in the next available planting season with others of similar size, species and number, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

<u>Reason</u>: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of an appropriate landscape scheme in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(6) The proposed lighting shall not be brought into use until precise lighting details including hours of use and measures to prevent light spillage and unacceptable glare to users of the public highway or adjacent residential properties have been provided in accordance with [the approved plans / a scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority and the lighting shall thereafter be retained in accordance with the approved details.

<u>Reason</u>: In order to safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring properties or highway safety in accordance with Policies CS5 and CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

No development shall take place until an Arboricultural Method **(7)** Statement (detailing all aspects of construction and staging of works) and a Tree Protection Plan in accordance with British Standard 5837:2012 (or later revision) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed details and no equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought onto the site for the purposes of the development until fencing has been erected in accordance with the Tree Protection Plan. Within any area fenced in accordance with this condition, nothing shall be stored, placed or disposed of above or below ground, the ground level shall not be altered, no excavations shall be made, nor shall any fires be lit, without the prior written consent of the local planning authority. The fencing shall be maintained in accordance with the approved details, until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been moved from the site.

<u>Reason</u>: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(8) A landscape management plan covering a period of no less than 5 years, including long term design objectives, management responsibilities, maintenance and inspection schedules for all landscape areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the occupation of the development or any completed phase of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, die or in the opinion of the local planning authority become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the next available planting season with others of similar size, species and number, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

<u>Reason</u>: To ensure that due regard is paid to the continuing enhancement and maintenance of amenity afforded by landscape features in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(9) No equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought onto the site for the purpose of the development, until a scheme showing the exact position of protective fencing to enclose all retained trees as shown on the submitted plans, beyond the outer edge of the overhang of their branches in accordance with British Standard 5837: 2012 - Trees in Relation to Construction (or later revision), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, and the protective fencing has been erected in accordance with the approved details. This fencing shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.

<u>Reason</u>: To protect the trees on site which are to be retained in the interests of the visual amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(10) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the cycle parking facilities mentioned on the approved plans have been fully implemented and available for use. The cycle parking facilities shall be Sheffield stands and there shall be no less than space for 16 bicycles to be stored. The cycle parking facilities shall thereafter be retained for use by the occupants of, and visitors to, the development at all times.

<u>Reason</u>: To ensure that satisfactory facilities for the parking of cycles are provided and to encourage travel by means other than private motor vehicles in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM36 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(11) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples of the external surfaces to be used for the development of the three kiosks shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

<u>Reason</u>: To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance

with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM9 and DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

(12) The "Evocation of Speed" equestrian statue shall not be removed from its current location before 31 March 2018 except with the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

<u>Reason</u>: To enable the new location to be agreed and prepared in advance in the interests of protecting this important piece of public art and to agree where it would be stored in the interim if relocated before that date. In order to accord with Policy E9 of Plan E – April 2011.

(13) A new Pyrus calleryana Chanticleer to a size of approximately 4m in height and 20cm girth is to be planted before the removal of the Ornamental Pear closest to the High Street and before the end of the first planting season (November –March) before the start of the agreed development works. Within a five year period from completion of the development, should this tree (or subsequent replacements) die or be removed, it should be replaced in the next planting season with a tree of similar size and species, and all new/replacement trees shall be subject to a further five year replanting period. An arboricultural method statement shall be submitted and agreed by the Borough Council in advance of the above planting which details how the planting pit will be constructed and supervised to ensure root disturbance of adjoining trees is minimised.

<u>Reason</u>: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of a replacement tree within the site in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM5 and DM9 of the Development Management Policies 2015.

Informatives:

- (1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.
- (2) The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out any works on the highway or any works that may affect a drainage channel/culvert or water course. The applicant is advised that a permit and, potentially, a Section 278 agreement must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the highway. All works on the highway will require a permit and an application will need to be submitted to the County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 months in advance of the intended start date, depending on the

scale of the works proposed and the classification of the road. Please see http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-traffic-management-permit-scheme. The applicant is also advised that consent may be required under Section 23 of the Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice.

The Committee noted verbal representations from the applicant and an objector. Letters of representation had been published on the Council's website and were available to the public and members of the Committee in advance of the meeting.

<u>Note</u>: In the interests of openness and transparency Councillor David Wood indicated that a close relative was a member of the Tree Advisory Board. However, he did not consider that it could be regarded as sufficiently close an association as to effect his consideration of the item.

20 PLANNING APPLICATION 15/01852/ADV - THE EBBISHAM CENTRE, 7 DERBY SQUARE, HIGH STREET, EPSOM KT19 8AG

Description

Erection of three illuminated and eight non-illuminated fascia signs together with five illuminated and eight non-illuminated other signs comprising directional, wall-mounted and frame mounted signs, and totem signs.

Decision

Planning permission is **PERMITTED** subject to the following conditions:

Conditions:

- (1) No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission.
- (2) No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to:
 - a) endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or aerodrome (civil or military);
 - b) obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or aid to navigation by water or air; or
 - c) hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or surveillance or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.

- (3) Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements, shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site.
- (4) Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the public.
- (5) Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity.
 - <u>Reason:-</u> (Conditions 1 5): To comply with Regulation 14 (7) of the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 and for the purposes of visual amenity.
- (6) The advertisement(s) permitted by this consent shall only be illuminated during the opening hours of the premises to which it relates.
 - Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and/or public safety in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM10 of the Development Management Policies 2015.
- (7) Prior to the commencement of development, details and samples of the materials advertisements together with details concerning the level of illuminations to be used for the advertisements shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
 - <u>Reason:</u> To secure a satisfactory appearance in the interests of the visual amenities and character of the locality in accordance with Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM15 of the Development Management Policies 2015.
- (8) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of this permission.
 - Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 (1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Informatives:

(1) The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of paragraph 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

(2) The Epsom and Ewell directional car park signs are white out of blue with the exception of the Ebbisham NCP car park. To facilitate instant recognition and for consistency it is recommended that the existing white out of brown sign be replaced with a white out of blue sign.

21 SITE VISITS

The Committee reviewed and considered site visits and decided that a visit should be held at the appropriate time in connection with the following application:

• The Roveries, 59-63 Cox Lane, West Ewell, KT19 9NR Ref: 15/01464/FUL

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 9.22 pm

COUNCILLOR HUMPHREY REYNOLDS (CHAIRMAN)